ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The circuit court erred in ruling thatWV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 required McElroy to repair 

or compensate for material damage to Texas Eastern's pipelines resulting from subsidence, 

regardless ofMcElroy's superior, contractual common law property rights. 

2. The circuit court erred in failing to find W.Va. Code § 22-1-3a applicable and, by 

extension, erred in failing to find WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 invalid under W.Va. Code § 22-1-3a. 



STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation ("Columbia Gas") and Appellant/Respondent 

Texas Eastern Transmission, LP ("Texas Eastern") operate gas transmission pipelines over coal 

reserves that underground coal mine operators Consolidation Coal Company ("Consol") and 

Petitioner Marshall County Coal Company fIkIa McElroy Coal Company ("McElroy") sought to 

undermine via full-extraction longwall mining. Appellee/Respondent West Virginia Department 

of Environmental Protection ("WVDEP") is West Virginia's state government entity tasked with, 

among other things, supervising and issuing mining permits in accordance with the West 

Virginia Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act (WVSCMRA), W.Va. Code § 22-3-1, et seq. 

and other applicable state laws and rules. 

This case is a consolidation of largely identical, separate appeals from final decisions of 

the West Virginia Surface Mine Board ("SMB"), issued in 2008-0S-SMB, 2008-13-SMB, 2008-

16-SMB, and 2008-19-SMB involving McElroy and Texas Eastern. These decisions were 

themselves appeals by Columbia Gas and Texas Eastern of affirn1ative permitting decisions 

made by the WVDEP on permit revision applications to existing underground mining permits 

held by Consol and McElroy. Of the four matters that were appealed, two are most directly 

pertinent to this Court's consideration: the 2008-16-SMB and 2008-19-SMB matters that involve 

the remaining parties: McElroy, Texas Eastern, and the WVDEP. i 

The other two matters, 2008-0S-SMB and 2008-13-SMB, were the first to be appealed to 

the 5MB and involved Columbia Gas and Consol? The record on appeal for those matters 

I Columbia Gas initially appealed the McElroy permit application decision in 2008-16-SMB while Texas 

Eastern appealed the same permit application decision in 2008-19-SMB. CAppo at 47a-53a, 54a-64a.) 

McElroy intervened as the permit holder in both and the two matters were then consolidated before the 

5MB in January 2009. CAppo at 65a-66a; 72a-80a.) 

2 Columbia Gas and Consol ultimately dismissed their respective appeals of the 5MB's decision in 2008-

05-SMB, 2008-13-SMB, 2008-16-SMB, and 2008-19-SMB. CAppo at 513a-516a.) 
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remains relevant to this Court's determination on the later two appeals (2008-16-SMB and 2008-

19-5MB). When the later two appeals were filed, the parties recognized that the facts and issues 

were virtually identical to the earlier appeals involving Columbia Gas and Consol. In the interest 

of streamlining the later two appeals, the parties elected to forgo duplicative pleadings and 

instead agreed to adopt the full record and filings from the earlier appeals as though they were 

amended as necessary to refer to McElroy and Texas Eastern. (Appendix ("App.") at 72a-80a.) 

A. 	 The parties' property rights 

The permitting appeals revolved around competing uses of certain tracts of land in West 

Virginia. Because ownership rights in this land have been severed over time, the coal companies 

and pipeline companies claimed rights to certain portions of the real property within the relevant 

areas. The coal companies asserted ownership of underground coal reserves as well as extensive, 

contractual rights to access and mine the coal without liability for effects on the surface lands 

overlying the reserves (rights that were severed by the original landowners in the early 1900s and 

sold to the coal companies' predecessors-in-interest). (App. at 25a, 31a-32a; 51a-52a; 82a.) 

The pipeline companies claimed to have an interest in rights of way that pass across the 

surface of the coal companies' reserves and where certain gas lines were installed beginning in 

1953. (App. at 67a, 68a; 82a.) Regarding the present parties involved, Texas Eastern acquired 

its rights ofway subject to McElroy's prior purchase of its subsurface property rights. (App. at 

82a.) McElroy's rights include the express right to mine and subside the surface and structures 

thereon, and the contractual right to do so without liability for damage to those structures. (ld.) 

B. 	 The McElroy Permit Revision Application and the WVDEP's approval of 
McElroy's Permit Revision Application. 

McElroy received its original mine permit to explore, develop, and extract coal by 

longwall mining underneath the surface at the McElroy mine in Marshall County, West Virginia 

3 




on February 10, 1983, when the WVDEP issued McElroy Permit No. U003383. (App. at 321a.) 

Near the end of 2007, McElroy submitted an application to the WVDEP for a revision to its 

existing Permit No. U003383 at the McElroy mine to expand developmental and longwall 

mining operations at additional coal reserves held by McElroy. (ld.) The application for 

Revision No. 33 to Permit No. U003383 ("McElroy's Permit Revision Application" or "Permit 

Revision Application"), which is the application and revision at issue between McElroy and 

Texas Eastern, was submitted on December 4, 2007. (ld.) As stated by the WVDEP to the 

circuit court, this was a "routine" permit revision application. (App. at 502a.) 

The Permit Revision Application specifically stated that McElroy intended to use the 

longwall method of mining to extract coal in the relevant panels. (App. at 321a) Longwall 

mining is a method of extracting coal which both the federal and state regulatory agencies view 

as acceptable and one which contemplates "planned subsidence." See, e.g., 30 C.F.R. § 

817.121(c); WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.a. Longwall mining removes long panels of underground coal 

that are 600 to 1150 feet wide and thousands of feet long. A longwall shearer removes the panel 

by cutting slices of coal along the width of the face. While the. shearer is operating, the roof is 

temporarily supported by hydraulic supports called shields that are moved forward each time that 

a slice is cut from the face. The coal is transported from the face by an armored, chain conveyor. 

The roof behind the shields is then allowed to subside. Subsidence results from the settling of 

the strata overlying an area where coal has been removed by longwall mining. (App. at 389a, 

citing WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.a.) 

As a part of the Permit Revision Application, McElroy submitted a subsidence control 

plan to address the planned subsidence. (App. at 325a-330a.) The subsidence control plan 

provided that "[i]f subsidence does occur as a result of the longwall mining, that causes material 
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damages or reduces the value or reasonable foreseeable use of the surface lands, McElroy will 

restore the land or structure(s) or compensate the surface owner." (App. at 326a.) Following 

that statement, McElroy's subsidence control plan clearly provided that "[m]ining beneath gas 

pipelines will be handled per common law practices in accordance with West Virginia codes and 

regulations and severance deeds between the pipeline owner and McElroy Coal Company." 

(App. at 528a.) In July 2008, Texas Eastern and Columbia Gas, both of whom have pipelines 

crossing the McElroy coal reserves, objected to the WVDEP's approval of the subsidence control 

plan in McElroy's Permit Revision Application and decision not to require McElroy to 

implement measures to protect the pipelines in advance of mining. (App. at 345a-346a.) The 

WVDEP then held a public hearing on October 23, 2008, to address the objections made by 

Texas Eastern and Columbia Gas. (App. at 343a-344a.) 

After the public hearing in October 2008, the WVDEP approved McElroy's Permit 

Revision Application on November 25, 2008. The WVDEP found that the Revision, including 

McElroy's subsidence control plan, was "accurate and complete and all of the requirements of 

Article 3, Chapter 22, and the Regulations have been complied with." (App. at 305a.) 

This result was consistent with similar public hearings conducted earlier in 2008 for two 

permit revision applications submitted by Consol involving the Bailey and Shoemaker mines (the 

"Consol Mines") in Marshall County. (App. at 95a, 161a.) In March 2008, in response to 

objections raised by Columbia Gas to Consol's subsidence control plans, the WVDEP wrote that: 

Consol was within their right to undermine noncommercial structures where 
they own the right to subside. However, they must repair structure damage and 
replace lost water resources such as wells and springs. The law with respect to 
commercial structures such as pipelines is less conclusive and depends on 
ownership precedent. We made it clear that the WVDEP does not mediate 
property ownership disputes. 
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(App. at 95a) (emphasis added). The WVDEP approved the pennit revision applications for both 

Consol Mines. (App. at 94a, 153a.) 

C. Procedural posture 

Texas Eastern appealed the WVDEP's approval of the McElroy pennit revision 

application to the 5MB and raised two primary issues: (1) whether the WVDEP erred by not 

requiring the coal companies' pennit revision applications to specify measures they would take 

to protect the pipelines in advance of mining, and (2) whether the coal companies had an 

obligation to correct or repair material damage to pipelines caused by mining regardless of their 

common law property rights. (App. at 60a-61a.) The earlier appeals filed by Columbia Gas 

involving substantially the same legal issues with the Consol Mines were already pending before 

the 5MB. 

On January 9,2009, the 5MB consolidated Texas Eastern's appeal (2008-19-SMB) with 

Columbia Gas' appeal (2008-16-SMB) of the WVDEP's McElroy mine pennit revision 

approval. (App. at 72a-77a.) The parties to the consolidated appeal, including the WVDEP and 

McElroy, also stipulated that the McElroy Pennit Revision Application would be resolved by a 

Final Order to be entered by the 5MB in connection with the earlier 2008-05-SMB and 2008-13

5MB appeals. CAppo at 74a.) 

On February 18, 2009, the 5MB entered a Final Order on the 2008-05-SMB and 2008-

13-SMB appeals and affinned the WVDEP's position relative to both questions before it. (App. 

at 377a-383a.) The WVDEP argued, and the 5MB agreed, that there is no regulatory 

requirement that coal companies are responsible for protecting pipelines from subsidence 

damage in advance of mining. (App. at 381a.) The WVDEP also asserted, and the 5MB agreed, 

that coal companies must repair or compensate for subsidence damage to pipelines caused by 
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mining regardless of their common law property rights. (App. at 380a-381a.) This marked a 

radical reordering of West Virginia property rights and a dramatic change from the WVDEP's 

own previous position, expressed in writing as recently as the preceding year that "ownership 

precedent" dictated responsibility for subsidence damage to pipelines. Furthermore, this 

departure from precedent and the WVDEP's previous position was suddenly asserted with no 

explanation or analysis in support ofthe change. (App. at 95a.) 

On March 26, 2009, the 5MB entered a Final Order on the 2008-16-SMB and 2008-19

5MB appeals. (App. at 384a.) Both Texas Eastern and McElroy appealed the 5MB's 

determination to the circuit court. Texas Eastern appealed the 5MB's determination that the coal 

companies were not required to mitigate the pipelines in advance of mining. McElroy appealed 

the 5MB's determination that coal companies must either repair or compensate for any 

subsidence damage to pipelines caused by mining, even if they possess common law deed 

waivers to subside and damage the surface without liability. The circuit court heard oral 

argument on March 11,2016, and Texas Eastern, McElroy, and the WVDEP submitted proposed 

findings offact and conclusions oflaw on April 29, 2016. 

The circuit court affirmed the 5MB's decision, adopting word-for-word the proposed 

findings of fact and conclusions of law submitted by the WVDEP. Cf West Virginia Dep't of 

Envt'! Protection's Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions ofLaw and the circuit court's 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order of August 5, 2016 ("Order ofAugust 5, 2016"). 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

On September 29,2016, the Court granted the Petition for Appeal in this matter. It did so 

in recognition of the fact that this case presents fundamental issues involving the scope and 

application of the WVDEP's subsidence control regulations and the specific obligations that it 
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can lawfully impose on underground coal mme operators regardless of their common law 

property rights. This Court has repeatedly upheld and enforced underground coal mine 

operators' contractual common law rights to subside commercial structures and to do so without 

liability. 

At issue in this case is whether the WVDEP's subsidence control regulation (specifically 

WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c) ("WV Subsidence Regulation") requires operators to repair or 

compensate for material damage to any structure, including pipelines, caused by subsidence due 

to underground coal mining irrespective of subsidence damage deed waivers in the operators' 

possession. Also at issue is, if the Court were to find that the WV Subsidence Regulation 

imposes a repair or compensation obligation for pipelines damaged by subsidence irrespective of 

deed waivers, whether such a provision is valid under W. Va. Code § 22-1-3a ("WV Stringency 

Statute"). 

The circuit court answered both of these questions in the affirmative. In doing so, it 

eradicated long standing contractual property rights of subjacent support recognized under the 

common law and it contradicted West Virginia Supreme Court decisions that have enforced 

contractual deed waivers for decades. It also approved the WVDEP's issuance of WV 

Subsidence Regulation § 16.2.c, which, if it is interpreted to eradicate deed waivers as to 

commercial structures, is clearly more stringent than its federal counterpart (which preserves 

contractual deed waivers as to commercial structures), making it invalid because the WVDEP 

failed to demonstrate why more stringent language was "reasonably necessary" in compliance 

with the WV Stringency Statute. Both of these decisions represent a fundamental 

misinterpretation and misapplication of West Virginia case law, federal and state statutes, and 

WVDEP subsidence control regulations which, if allowed to stand, will impact not only the 
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parties to this appeal, but the value of real property throughout the Commonwealth of West 

Virginia, as well as the rights of all property owners involved in similar disputes. 

Accordingly, for the reasons set forth below, Petitioner urges the Court to correct the 

errors committed by the circuit court in interpreting and applying West Virginia case law, federal 

and state statutes, and WVDEP subsidence control regulations to the specific facts presented, 

and, in so doing, affirm the Court's precedent preserving the application of subsidence damage 

deed waivers for commercial structures like Texas Eastern's pipelines. 

The specific order from which relief is sought is the circuit court's Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law and Order of August 5, 2016 ("Order of August 5, 2016"), affirming the 

5MB's ruling "that WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 requires McElroy to either repair or compensate for 

damage resulting from subsidence caused to any structures or facilities regardless of its common 

law property rights." (App. at la, 14a.) 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Because the principle issues in this case are of fundamental public importance (the rights 

of property owners throughout West Virginia and many out of state property owners as well), 

involve questions regarding the validity of a West Virginia state regulation (WV CSR § 38-2

16.2.c), and leave lingering questions about the validity of valuable contractual subsidence 

damage deed waivers in the Commonwealth of West Virginia, infra, this case is appropriate for 

an argument and disposition by memorandum decision pursuant to Rule 20 of the West Virginia 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. 
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ARGUMENT 

A. 	 Standard of review 

Because this appeal involves the interpretation of West Virginia regulations and statutes, 

this Court's review is de novo. See Syl. Pt. 1, Appalachian Power Co. v. State Tax Dep't, 195 

W.Va. 573,466 S.E.2d 424 (1995) ("Interpreting a statute or an administrative rule or regulation 

presents a purely legal question subject to de novo review. "); see also Syl. Pt. 1, Chrystal R.M v. 

Charlie A.L., 194 W.Va. 138, 459 S.E.2d 415 (1995) ("Where the issue on an appeal from the 

circuit court is clearly a question oflaw or involving an interpretation of a statute, we apply a de 

novo standard of review."). 

B. 	 Assignment of Error No.1: The circuit court erred in ruling that WV CSR § 38-2
16.2.c.2 required McElroy to repair or compensate for material damage to Texas 
Eastern's pipelines resulting from subsidence, regardless of McElroy's superior, 
contractual common law property rights. 

McElroy has established that its property rights in the area in question are first-in-time 

and superior to the mere surface rights-of-way claimed by Texas Eastern. Property rights of that 

kind have been validated and recognized under West Virginia law for decades, both before and 

after the enactment of the WVSCMRA provisions at issue. Because WYSCMRA, like federal 

SMCRA, does not eliminate the protections of bargained-for deed waivers against claims by 

owners of commercial structures, Texas Eastern's commercial pipelines are subject to McElroy's 

prior subsurface rights and contractual liability waivers. See McElroy's Proposed Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions ofLaw ~~ 3-19. 

1. 	 McElroy's right to recover its coal and subside the surface in the proposed 
permit revision area is first-in-time and superior to Texas Eastern. 

McElroy (or its predecessors-in-interest) bargained for and purchased the rights to 

recover coal and the express right to subside the surface without incurring liability in the 
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proposed pennit reVISIOn area. (App. at 31a-32a, 51a-52a, 82a.) Texas Eastern (or its 

predecessors-in-interest) obtained its rights of way from the original grantors after McElroy (or 

its predecessors-in-interest) had already acquired its rights to recover coal and subside the 

surface without incurring liability in the proposed pennit revision area, and Texas Eastern 

presumably paid a bargain price commensurate with the limited rights they purchased. (App. at 

67a-68a, 82a, noting that the first of Texas Eastern's pipelines at issue was placed in service in 

1953). 

When subjacent support to the surface has been waived, the surface estate becomes the 

subservient estate and it is burdened by the right of the owner of the dominant coal estate to mine 

its coal without providing support. Antco, Inc. v. Dodge Fuel Corp., 209 W.Va. 644, 651-52, 

550 S.E.2d. 622, 629-30 (2001); Schultz v. Consolidation Coal Co., 197 W.Va. 375, 384-85,475 

S.E.2d 467, 476-77 (1996) ("Courts in this jurisdiction ... have consistently upheld the validity 

of these waivers under this state's common law."). See also Cabot Oil & Gas Co. v. Pocahontas 

Land Corp., 180 W.Va. 200, 201, 376 S.E.2d 94, 95 (1988) (noting that "the coal estate was the 

dominant estate in the property and that the oil and gas interests were subservient to that coal 

estate"). This principle applies to situations where a mineral owner has been relieved of its 

typical subjacent support obligation and, as a result, acquired the right to cause surface 

subsidence and, in certain cases, damage surface structures without incurring liability. See id. 

Accordingly, when Texas Eastern (or its predecessors-in-interest) acquired its rights of way, it 

acquired rights to use only a portion of a surface estate that was already subservient to the rights 

held by McElroy, and knew or should have known of McElroy's rights and waivers of subjacent 

support contained in its deeds. (App. at 82a.) 
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Based on long-standing West Virginia precedent, including the most recent West Virginia 

Supreme Court decision in Anteo, and the relative property rights that were not directly contested 

in this case, the fundamental starting point for any analysis of the issues on appeal is that 

McElroy's ownership of subsurface coal, and the express rights to mine its coal and subside the 

surface are first-in-time and superior to the rights of way owned by Texas Eastern. 

2. 	 The SMCRA and WVSCMRA do not eliminate the common law property 
rights at issue. 

Because McElroy's dominant property rights are first-in-time and superior to Texas 

Eastern's later-acquired rights of way, to prevail Texas Eastern must somehow convince the 

Court that Texas Eastern should nevertheless gain the benefit of subsidence protections that it 

chose not to purchase. Yet, in a continuation of decades of West Virginia jurisprudence, this 

Court has repeatedly recognized the validity of subjacent support and subsidence damage waiver 

clauses, such as those in the deeds acquired by McElroy here, which release a subsurface owner 

from the obligation to support the surface. E.g., Anteo, 209 W.Va. at 651-52,550 S.E.2d at 629

30. The Court in Anteo recognized "a proper waiver and adherence to state and federal mining 

regulations can allow a mining company to cause subsidence, and in certain cases damage 

surface structures without incurring liability." Id. See also McElroy's Proposed Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions ofLaw ~~ 94-96. 

In light ofthis straightforward declaration of the continuing validity of deed waivers held 

by a mining company, the circuit court made a simple, but crucial, error. The circuit court 

ignored the Anteo decision, and arrived at its conclusion that McElroy's deed waivers were of no 

effect by following a convoluted, and incorrect, line of reasoning. 

In its Order of August 5, 2016, the circuit court stated that pursuant to 30 C.F.R. § 

817.121(c)(3) (30 C.F.R. § 817.121 will be referred to as the "Federal Repair/Compensation 
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Provision"), "State law" provides the pertinent repair or compensation requirements. (App. at 

la, 13a.) The circuit court then, without explanation, asserted that the "applicable provisions of 

State law" in this case are limited solely to "those contained in § 16.2 et seq." (Id.) The circuit 

court went on to rule that McElroy was required to correct or compensate for material damage to 

pipelines caused by subsidence "even in instances where McElroy holds common law deed , 

waivers" because § 16.2 et seq. of the WV Subsidence Regulation "does not contain any 

provisions that absolve the permittee from liability in cases where the permittee holds common 

law deed waivers." (!d.) The implication the circuit court drew is that if coal mine operators in 

possession of deed waivers could validly subside the surface without liability, such language 

would be in § 16.2.c. And because such language is not found in § 16.2.c, McElroy could not 

subside the surface without incurring liability for material damage to Texas Eastern's pipelines. 

Here, the error of the circuit court's decision comes most fully into focus. The Order of 

August 5, 2016 unambiguously states that § 16.2.c.2 ofthe WV Subsidence Regulation "requires 

McElroy to either repair or compensate for damage resulting from subsidence caused to any 

structures or facilities regardless of its common law property rights." (Id.) (emphasis added). In 

other words, the circuit court's decision is premised on an understanding of the law that says no 

structure anywhere in the Commonwealth, whether commercial, residential, or non-commercial, 

is subject to the rights expressed in deed waivers. 

Not only is this wrong, but it simply cannot be reconciled with the West Virginia 

Supreme Court finding in Antco that "a proper waiver and adherence to state and federal mining 

regulations can allow a mining company to cause subsidence, and in certain cases damage 

surface structures without incurring liability." Anteo, 209 W.Va. at 651-52, 550 S.E.2d at 629

30 (emphasis added). Where the West Virginia Supreme Court has already held that deed 
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waivers are effective as to some structures, a lower court's holding that deed waivers are not 

effective as to any structure is clearly based on a fundamental misunderstanding of the law. 

The circuit court's reasoning suffers from a faulty premise - that § 16.2 et seq. is the 

"State law" applicable to a pennittee's obligation to repair or compensate pipelines and 

otherwise preempts common law property rights. (App. at 1, 13.) The circuit court found that 

because § I6.2.c makes no mention of deed waivers absolving pennittees from liability for 

damaging surface structures, deed waivers must not apply. /d. But the Antco decision (and its 

predecessors) was perfectly clear that deed waivers remain enforceable in West Virginia and that 

holding in and of itself is the law of West Virginia: "[JJudicial decisions rendered by the 

Supreme Court ofAppeals of West Virginia are laws ofthis State." Jackson, et at. v. Belcher, 

232 W.Va. 513, 519, 753 S.E.2d 11, 17 (2013) (emphasis added). See also McElroy's Proposed 

Findings o/Fact and Conclusions o/Law,-r 96. 

In wholly ignoring decades of West Virginia court decisions that have (1) agreed 

SMCRA and WVSCMRA do not preempt the common law and (2) found waivers of subjacent 

support valid, the circuit court erred in understanding the law in West Virginia on the continuing 

enforceability of the property rights expressed in deed waivers. Therefore, when the circuit court 

sought to detennine the scope of subsidence requirements under "State law," its decision to focus 

only on whether deed waivers were expressly mentioned in a regulation was a decision to focus 

on the tree at the expense of the forest. See, e.g., Antco, 209 W.Va. at 651-52, 550 S.E.2d at 

629-30; Schultz, 197 W.Va. at 384-85, 475 S.E.2d at 476-77 (holding that SMCRA and 

WVSCMRA have not pre-empted West Virginia state common law); Smerdell v. Consolidation 

Coal Co., 806 F. Supp. 1278, 1284 (N.D. W.Va. 1992) (holding that SMCRA and WVSCMRA 

have not rendered waivers of the right to subjacent support invalid). 
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Notwithstanding the error associated with the circuit court's improper construction of 

applicable West Virginia "State law," even assuming arguendo that § 16.2 et seq. is the only 

applicable "State law," the language of § l6.2.c. (specifically § 16.2.c.2 and § 16.2.c.3) still does 

not support the circuit court's decision. And if the language is construed to support the circuit 

court's decision, then the provisions must necessarily be invalid under the WV Stringency 

Statute (W. Va. Code § 22-l-3a). 

3. 	 WV Subsidence Regulation § 16.2.c. imposes a repair or compensation 
requirement only for certain protected structures. 

Because of the interplay between federal SMCRA and WVSCMRA provisions, and the 

ungainly 'dance' that follows wherein the state version is periodically revised to track changes 

made to the federal program, understanding the scope of the current WV Subsidence Regulation 

entails an understanding of how it fits in the overall regulatory structure. What becomes 

apparent is that WV Subsidence Regulation § l6.2.c. was not intended to, and does not, extend 

repair/compensation obligations to commercial structures such as the gas pipelines in question 

when the owner of the pipelines has purchased inferior property rights. See McElroy's Proposed 

Findings o/Fact and Conclusions o/Law ~~ 53-60. 

WV Subsidence Regulation § l6.2.c is authorized by the Surface Mining Control and 

Reclamation Act (SMCRA) and the 1992 amendments to the SMCRA (30 U.S.C. § 1309a, or 

"The Energy Policy Act"), where both Congress and the states have sought to legislate the repair 

of and compensation for subsidence damage. While WV Subsidence Regulation § 16.2.c. 

plainly sets out a duty to repair or compensate for material damage to surface lands and certain 

structures, this requirement obviously encroaches on the private rights enjoyed under the 

common law by owners of subjacent support and subsidence damage deed waivers. Federal law 

has limited otherwise valid deed waivers, but only for non-commercial buildings and occupied 
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residential dwellings. See 30 U.S.C. § 1309a(a)(1) (1992). This case, however, does not involve 

any allegation that mining activity damaged non-commercial buildings or occupied residential 

dwellings. The circuit court's reliance on select portions of § 16.2.c to insist on a strict liability 

standard for subsidence damage to all structures, including commercial structures, failed to 

properly give effect to the WV Subsidence Regulation in its entirety. 

To understand the correct scope of the WV Subsidence Regulation, it is necessary to first 

understand the federal SMCRA program and then the manner in which the federal law shapes 

and animates the WVSCMRA scheme. 

a. The SMCRA and Energy Policy Act of1992 

The Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act (SMCRA), found at 30 U.S.C. §§ 1201 

et seq., was enacted on August 3, 1977, with the express purpose of "assuring that the rights of 

surface landowners and other persons with a legal interest in the land or appurtenances thereto 

are fully protected from such operation." 30 U.S.C. § 1202(b). In 1979, the Department of the 

Interior's Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM) implemented the 

SMCRA by publishing permanent regulations requiring a coal mine operator to correct material 

subsidence damage both to structures and land regardless of state law. 30 C.F.R. § 

817.124(b)(1).3 In 1983, the OSM revised the federal subsidence regulation stating that an 

operator would only be required to correct or compensate material damage from subsidence 

damage to structures "[t]o the extent req~ired under State law." 48 Fed. Reg. 24637, 24652 

(June 1,1983) (codified at 30 C.F.R. § 817.121(c)(2». The rationale behind the OSM's "State 

3 This regulation did not expressly state whether it invalidated existing deed waivers of subjacent support 
pursuant to state common law. In 1981, West Virginia adopted the identical version of 30 C.F .R. § 
817.124(b)(1). Several years later, the United States District Court for the Northern District of West 
Virginia resolved this issue by concluding that the 1979 federal regulation and 1981 state regulation did 
not supersede West Virginia state common law related to deed waivers of subjacent support. See 
Smerdell v. Consolidation Coal Co., 806 F. Supp. 1278, 1284 (N.D. W. Va. 1992). 
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law" proviso was that Congress had not intended to create "additional property rights" with the 

passage of SMCRA, but to protect existing property rights.4 52 Fed. Reg. 4860, 4863 (February 

17, 1987). Specifically, the OSM sought to ensure that mine operators that had already acquired 

the right to subside surface structures without liability under their state's property laws through 

contracts, deeds, and other agreements, were not deprived of those previously-acquired property

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