SUMMARY RESPONSE 

In accordance with Rule IO(e) of the West Virginia Rules ofAppellate Procedure, the 

Respondent, West Virginia Department ofEnvironmental Protection ("WVDEP"), by counsel, 

hereby tenders its summary response to the petition in this matter. WVDEP does so in lieu of 

filing a full respondent's brief. WVDEP also, by so doing, consents to the waiver oforal

argument. 

The underlying case has been plumbed down to its excrutiating minutiae in the record 

below. Notwithstanding the accretion of years of procedural history, pleadings, hearings, and the 

lengthy petition, the case before the Court is short and simple. The plain language of the law is 

dispositive and requires no construction or interpretation. The statutes and regulations say what 

they say, the agency's decision confonns to the Legislature's clear and unambiguous intent, and 

the matter is therefore disposed of. Accordingly, there is no error on the part of the Circuit Court 

ofMarshall County and a summary argument by WVDEP is appropriate. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

As stated by the Petitioner, Marshall County Coal Company, fonnerly known as McElroy 

Coal Company (herein referred to as "Marshall" in both fonns), interpretation of an agency's 

decision regarding a statute or regulation is de novo. Syl. Pt. 1, Appalachian Power Co. v. State 

Tax Dep't, 195 W. Va. 573,466 S.E.2d 424 (1995). However, WVDEP notes additionally, per 

Appalachian Power, that in deciding whether administrative agency's position regarding 

interpretation of a statute should be sustained, the court must first ask whether legislature has 

directly spoken to precise question in issue, and if intention of legislature is clear, that is the end 

ofthe matter, and the agency's decision will (and will only) be upheld ifit confonns to the 

Legislature's intent. Id., Syl. Pt. 3. 
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Furthermore, when the language of a regulation promulgated pursuant to the 

WVSMCRA, W. Va. Code § 22A-3-1 et seq., is clear and unambiguous, the plain meaning of the 

regulation is to be accepted and followed without resorting to rules of interpretation or 

construction. Curnutte v. Callaghan, 188 W.Va. 494, 425 S.E.2d 170 (1992). 

SUMMARY ARGUMENT 

WVDEP hereby addresses the Petitioner's Assignment of Error No.1 as to both duties to 

repair or compensate and as to the effect ofcommon law property rights. WVDEP furthermore 

hereby addresses Assignment of Error No.2 as to stringency. 

The Federal Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 ("SMCRA") contains 

the following language regarding subsidence control: 

(3) Repair or compensation for damage to other structures. The permittee must, to the 
extent required under applicable provisions of State law, either correct material damages 
resulting from subsidence caused to any structures or facilities not protected by paragraph 
(c)(2) of this section by repairing the damage or compensate the owner ofthe structures 
or facilities for the full amount of the decrease in value resulting from the subsidence. 
Repair of damage includes rehabilitation, restoration, or replacement ofdamaged 
structures or facilities .... 

30 C.F.R. § 817.121.(c)(3)(emphasis added). 

WV CSR § 3 8-2-16.2.c.2 requires an operator conducting underground mining activities 

to do the following: 

Either correct material damage resulting from subsidence caused to any structures or 
facilities by repairing the damage or compensate the owner of such structures and 
facilities in the full amount of the diminution in value resulting from the subsidence. 
Repair ofdamage includes rehabilitation, restoration, or replacement ofdamaged 
structures or facilities. Compensation may be accomplished by the purchase prior to 
mining of a non-cancelable premium-paid insurance policy. The requirements of this 
paragraph only apply to subsidence related damage caused by underground mining 
activities conducted after October 24, 1992; 

W. Va. Code R. §§ 38-2-16.2 et seq. (2008). 
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WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 was promulgated pursuant to the West Virginia Surface Coal 

Mining and Reclamation Act ("WVSCMRA"), W. Va. Code §§ 22-3-1 et seq. 

When the language of a regulation promulgated pursuant to WVSCMRA is clear and 

unambiguous, the plain meaning of the regulation is to be accepted and followed without 

resorting to rules of interpretation or construction. Curnutte. 

The 5MB determined that WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 requires Marshall to either repair or 

compensate for damage resulting from subsidence caused to any structures or facilities regardless 

of its common law property rights. 

Marshall claims that WV CSR § 38-2-16.2.c.2 is impermissibly more stringent than 30 

C.F.R. § 817.l21.(c)(3), thus running afoul ofW. Va. Code § 22-1-3a, which states: 

Except for legislative rules promulgated for the purpose of implementing the provisions 
of [§§ 22-12-4, 22-17-6, and 22-18-6], all ofthis chapter, and notwithstanding the 
provisions of [§ 22-5-4], legislative rules promulgated by the director which become 
effective on or after the first day ofJuly, one thousand nine hundred ninety-four, may 
include new or amended environmental provisions which are more stringent than the 
counterpart federal rule or program to the extent that the director first provides specific 
written reasons which demonstrate that such provisions are reasonably necessary to 
protect, preserve or enhance the quality ofWest Virginia's environment or human health 
or safety .... 

W. Va. Code § 22-1-3a. 

However, W. Va. Code § 22-1-3a is not applicable, as 30 C.F.R. § 817.121.(c)(3) 

specifically defers to State law to provide the requirements by which it must comply. 

Pursuant to 30 C.F.R. § 817.121.( c )(3), a permittee must correct material damage 

resulting from subsidence, or compensate the owner for the full amount of decrease in value, to 

the extent required under aru>licable provisions of State law. 

The applicable provisions of State law in this instance are those contained in WV CSR §§ 

38-2-16.2 et seq., which mandate that a permit holder is required to repair or compensate any 

3 




subsidence damage. WV CSR §§ 38-2-16.2 et seq. does not contain any provisions that absolve 

the pennittee ofliability in cases where the permittee holds common law deed waivers. 

Thus, Marshall is required to comply with the provisions set forth in WV CSR §§ 38-2

16.2.c.2 by correcting material damage resulting from subsidence as directed by the applicable 

code provisions, even in instances where Marshall holds common law deed waivers. 

Therefore, the 5MB was correct in ruling, and the circuit court was correct in affirming, 

that WV CSR §§ 38-2-16.2.c.2 requires Marshall to either repair or compensate for damage 

resulting from subsidence caused to any structures or facilities regardless of its common law 

property rights. Furthermore, neither the 5MB's nor the circuit court's rulings run afoul of any 

relevant requirements as to the relative stringency of federal and State law. 

CONCLUSION 

Accordingly, the decision of the Circuit Court in the underlying matter should be 

affirmed, with the petition in this matter being denied and dismissed from the docket of this 

Honorable Court.